
 

 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

May 01, 2023 

7:00 PM 

 

 



 

Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 01, 2023 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 
This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

 

Please silence cell phones. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 01, 2023; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library - Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Rev. William Sawyer 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Dismal Swamp Welcome Center - Sarah Hill 

ITEM 4. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Commerce Park Property Sale (D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc.) - Erin Burke 

ITEM 6. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Discussion of New High School 

ITEM 7. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement - Erin Burke 



 

Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 01, 2023 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

C. SMWA Resolution Authorizing Registration & Authority to Vote - Erin Burke 

D. Proclamation in Recognition of Provider Appreciation Day - Erin Burke 

E. Proclamation in Recognition of Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week - 

ITEM 8. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

B. CAC Resignation Request 

C. Senior Center Advisory Board 

D. Senior Tar Heel Legislature 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 9. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes 

B. Budget Amendments 

C. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

D. Refunds Over $100.00 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Estimated Tax Values-2023 

G. Amended Grant Project Ordinance 

H. Set Public Hearing - FY 2023-2024 Budget 

I. Set Public Hearing - 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program 

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 11. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Adult Care Community Advisory Committee Annual Report 

D. Fire Prevention Report 



 

Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 01, 2023 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM 13. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 14. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Dismal Swamp Welcome Center - Sarah Hill 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill will announce National Travel & Tourism 

Week. 

3.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Public Hearing - D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc. 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public hearing at 7:00 p.m., or as 

soon thereafter as practical, on May 1, 2023, in the Boardroom of the Camden Public Library to 

receive public input on the conveyance of a fee simple interest in real property from the County 

of Camden to D. T. Read Steel Co., Inc. consisting of 6.72 acres more or less situate within the 

Camden Commerce Park, Camden, North Carolina, to exclude any wetlands. The value of the 

real property to be conveyed is $35,000 per acre.  The proposed consideration will be $35,000 

per acre.  The Company contemplates moving its corporate headquarters with the creation of 6-8 

administrative full-time jobs and 75-150 seasonal jobs within an average annual payroll of $10 

million. Jobs shall be maintained for at least 10 years. 
Recommendation: 

Authorize the County Manager in consultation with the County Attorney to enter into a Purchase and 

Sale Agreement with D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc. based on the terms presented during the Public 

Hearing. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 6



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Discussion of New High School 

 

Attachments:  

 

6.A

Packet Pg. 7



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   March Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: March20230425100212358 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  March Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and Approve 

7.A

Packet Pg. 8



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
ch

20
23

04
25

10
02

12
35

8 
 (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement 

 

Attachments: EARL Agreement 2023 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement is up for renewal.  The agreement is for a 

period of three years.  There have been some minor clerical changes to the agreement but there 

have been no substantial changes to the language. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 16



Contract for the East Albemarle Regional Library System 
 
 
This agreement made and entered into this the ____ day of ______ 2023 by and between the 
Counties of Camden, Currituck, Dare and Pasquotank. 
 
WHEREAS, the Mission of the East Albemarle Regional Library System is to serve citizens of all 
ages by making available materials that meet their informational and recreational interests and 
to support formal education, independent learning and literacy/reading enhancement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the East Albemarle Regional Library System strives to serve as a reliable resource 
that meets our community’s need for information, recreation, entertainment, education and 
personal fulfillment; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the East Albemarle Regional Library System attempts to appeal to a broad spectrum 
of citizens, catering in a professional and courteous manner to their needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, this collaboration provides for a more effective and efficient use of local resources 
and better technology for the benefit of their residents and; 
 
WHEREAS, this collaboration provides opportunities for service and resource allocations beyond 
the financial and service capacities of the individual governments and libraries. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to resolutions duly adopted by their governing boards, the parties, 
hereto renew their commitment for the organization of the East Albemarle Regional Library 
System upon the terms set forth below therein for a term extending from 1 July 2023 through 30 
June 2026. 
 
 I.  Governments Involved 
  a.  Camden County 
  b.  Currituck County 
  c.  Dare County 
  d.  Pasquotank County 
 II.  Purpose statement 
  a.  This agreement is to perpetuate excellent library and information services 
       to the residents of the areas included within the jurisdictions of the 
   aforementioned governing bodies through their collaborative and 
   collective efforts under the legal authority of N.C.G.S. 153A-270 and 
   N.C.G.S. 160A, Article 20, Part 1. 
 III.  Board of Trustees 
  a. The board of Trustees shall be the governing body of the Regional Library 

System. 
  b. Membership 

    i.  There shall be twelve (12) members of the Board of Trustees providing 
     equitable representation of each participating governmental unit. 
      1. Camden County: three (3) members appointed by the Camden 

County Board of Commissioners. 
      2. Currituck County: three (3) members appointed by the Currituck 

County Board of Commissioners. 
      3. Dare County: three (3) members appointed by the Dare County 

Board of Commissioners. 
      4. Pasquotank County: three (3) members appointed by the Pasquotank 

County Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
 
    
 
    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

A
R

L
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
20

23
  (

E
as

t 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 R
eg

io
n

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



   ii. Members shall be appointed from the membership of the local library  
     advisory boards according to bylaws and policies approved by each 
     County Board of Commissioners for that library. 
   iii. Members shall be appointed in staggered terms to promote 
     consistency as well as to accommodate change.  Regional Bylaws shall  
     clearly define the term limits and how staggered terms shall be  
     accomplished.  Members shall be serving as members of the local 
     advisory boards at the time of their appointment. 
   iv. Members shall serve no more than two consecutive terms with no 
     single term longer than four years. 
   v. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled with appointments by the 
     appropriate governing body to serve the remainder of the unexpired 
     term of the member creating the vacancy. 
   vi. Any member missing three (3) consecutive Board meetings shall be 
     considered to have resigned, and the County Commissioners shall 
     appoint a new member to serve the remainder of the unexpired term 
     upon notification by the Chairman of the Regional Library Board of 
     Trustees. 
  c. Powers and Duties delegated to the Regional Library Board of Trustees by 
   the Counties of Camden, Currituck, Dare and Pasquotank. 
   i. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to adopt bylaws 
     and rules for its own governance. 
   ii. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to adopt policies 
     for the regional library system’s administration and operation. 
   iii. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to select, appoint, 
     remove, determine salary and other terms of employment of a regional 
     library director. 
      1. These actions shall require a majority vote of the Board at which a 

quorum is present. 
      2. The EARL Regional Library Director shall: 
        a.  Have a valid North Carolina Public Librarian Certificate; 
        b. Be the chief executive and administrative officer of the East  
          Albemarle Regional Library and function in accordance 
          with the approved policies of the EARL Board. 
        c.  Be authorized to appoint other employees and will seek 
          advice from local trustees and officials in appointing 
          management personnel. 
        d. All regional library personnel will be under the 
          administration of the director. 
   iv. The Board of Trustees shall develop and approve an annual budget 
     which shall: 
      1. Be administered under the same provisions as units of local 
        government (G.S. 159), with all state funds administered by the 

regional library and expended throughout the region as described in 
07 NCAC 021.0202. 

   v. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to appoint a 
     regional finance officer who shall: 
      1. Ensure expenditure of funds consistent with the budget adopted by 

the Board; 
      2. Receive, deposit and expend all funds in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles; 
      3. Report directly to the regional library director and at all meetings of 

the Board. 
 
 
 
 
    
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

A
R

L
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
20

23
  (

E
as

t 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 R
eg

io
n

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



    
   vi. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to assure 
     compliance with all applicable State and Federal laws and eligibility 
     requirements for the receipt of State and Federal Funds. 
   vii. The Board of Trustees shall be delegated the power to make 
     recommendations to the governing units concerning the construction 
     and improvement of the physical facilities of the libraries within the 
     region; however, construction and facility maintenance shall be the 
     responsibility of the local governing unit unless the Regional Board 
     negotiates and approves a collaborative effort. 
  viii. The Board of Trustees shall make regular reports related to services and 

operations to each governing body as conveyed by approved reports of the 
Regional Library Director. 

  ix. The Board of Trustees shall obtain an annual independent audit of regional 
library accounts consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and submit a copy of this audit to the State Library of North Carolina. 

 IV.  Terms of Property Ownership 
  a.  A major benefit of regional cooperation is that limited resources may be 
    shared among the various county residents without wasteful duplication;  
    however, certain ownership restrictions shall apply: 
    i. All buildings, vehicles, and grounds paid for with local funds shall remain the 

property of their respective county. 
    ii. All books, technology, furnishings or other resources paid for with local 

funds shall remain the property of the respective county. 
    iii. All books, technology, vehicles or other resources paid for with Regional or 

State funds shall remain the property of the Regional Library System.  If one 
county should withdraw, it forfeits any rights to joint property.  If the 
agreement is terminated or the Regional Library dissolved, the joint property 
shall be divided equally or sold and the receipts divided equally among the 
participating counties. 

 V.    Insurance Coverage and Indemnification 
  a.  Insurance Coverage 
    i. The local government units shall maintain insurance coverage for the 

building and for contents of the buildings for each of their individual libraries 
including general liability insurance. 

    ii. The Regional Library shall maintain insurance coverage for all items on the 
Regional inventory list and capitalization listing in all library facilities, the 
Regional Library office, and the vehicles used to provide service. 

  b. Indemnification 
    i. The Regional Library shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each 

person who may serve or who has served at any time as an officer, director, 
board member, or regional library employee against all expenses and 
liabilities, including, without limitation, counsel fees, judgements, fines, 
excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred by or 
imposed upon such person in connection with any threatened, pending or 
completed action, suit or proceeding in which he or she may become 
involved by reason of his or her service in such capacity; provided that no 
indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any 
matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any 
proceeding not to have acted in good faith in the reasonable belief that such 
action was in the best interests of the corporation; and further provided that 
any compromise or settlement payment shall be approved by a majority vote 
of a quorum of directors who are not at that time parties to the proceeding. 

    
 
 
 
 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

A
R

L
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
20

23
  (

E
as

t 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 R
eg

io
n

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



 VI. Provisions for Amendment 
   a. This agreement can be amended providing that all parties accept those 

amendments by a majority vote in a regular meeting of those parties. 
   b. Recommendations for amendments shall be forwarded to each of the county 

governments in writing with a thirty-day period for consideration given.  At the 
next regular meeting of the county boards after this thirty-day period, the 
amendments shall be voted on by those bodies. 

   c. Disagreements related to this agreement shall be resolved first by a committee 
of representatives from each governmental unit and then by their legal counsels 
if necessary. 

 VII. Provisions for Withdrawal 
   a. If any county, or counties, participating in the East Albemarle Regional Library 

wishes to withdraw from the Region, it must give written notice to the other 
counties and the Regional Library Board no later than July 1 that it wishes to 
withdraw from the Region on June 30th of the following year as described in  

    07 NCAC 021.0308. 
   b. Should that member decide within this time period to rescind the proposal, that 

member shall remain a part of the Regional Library System under the same 
conditions and requirements as the agreement under which they became a 
member. 

   c. Should more than one party wish to withdraw from the region, the Regional 
Library Board shall recommend to the remaining parties a best course of action 
for future library services to the remaining counties including remaining as a 
smaller regional library system or dissolution of the region. 

   d. Should a member fully withdraw, the Terms of Property Ownership as stated in 
Section IV (above) shall apply. 

   e. Any penalty or additional costs to the Regional Library System by a vendor for 
renegotiation of a multi-year contract or agreement due to the withdrawal of a 
party from the regional system shall be borne by the withdrawing party. 

   f. In case of withdrawal from the East Albemarle Regional Library System by one 
or more parties, plans will be made to provide uninterrupted and equitable 
library services in remaining EARL locations the following July 1.  The cost of 
new and/or additional network hardware and software required for the 
remaining EARL locations shall be purchased with regional funds. 

   g. The East Albemarle Regional Library System will be dissolved if three of the four 
parties withdraw in accordance with the procedures stated above. 

   h. As included under NCGS 160A, Article 20, Part 1, Joint Exercise of Power, 
property purchased by the region is owned jointly as tenants in common by the 
participating counties; therefore, if the East Albemarle Regional Library System 
is dissolved, the counties of Currituck, Dare, Pasquotank and Camden shall 
divide the joint assets equally among themselves. 

   i. Upon dissolution of the East Albemarle Regional Library System, the distribution 
of properties and resources jointly owned shall be accomplished by a committee 
composed of representatives from each governmental unit, the current Regional 
Library Director, and a representative from the State Library of North Carolina. 

   j. Upon dissolution of the East Albemarle Regional Library System, after all 
outstanding debts are resolved, any remaining funds from local governmental 
units shall be returned to them and the distribution of any remaining State or 
Federal funds shall be determined by the State Library.  Any land and building 
property owned by the Regional Library shall be sold and the proceeds 
distributed to the local governmental units.  Other property owned by the 
region, such as outreach vans, computers and other technology, books, and any 
other assets shall be sold and the proceeds divided among the units or 
distributed in some other equitable manner as agreed upon by the committee of 
representatives. 

 
 
 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

A
R

L
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
20

23
  (

E
as

t 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 R
eg

io
n

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



 VIII.  Review and Termination. 
   a. This agreement shall continue to be in effect for three (3) years from the dated 

signatures on the contract unless reasonable cause for termination is presented 
in writing to each of the participating local governmental units, the Regional 
Library Board and the State Library of North Carolina on or before July 1, with 
an effective date of the following June 30. 

   b. The agreement may be reviewed at any time by any local governmental body or 
the Regional Library Board and, if modifications are deemed reasonable and 
necessary, amendments may be made according to the procedures stated above. 

   c. At the end of the three year agreement period, the Regional Library Board shall 
review the agreement, recommend any modifications, and submit it for review 
and renewal to each of the local governmental units which shall review, suggest 
modifications, and vote to extend or rescind the agreement. 

   d. The effective dates for termination shall be the same as a withdrawal from the 
System. 

   e. If the agreement terminates, and no successor agreement is to be executed, the 
East Albemarle Regional Library System shall be dissolved and joint assets 
distributed as described above in Section VII. 

 
 
This AGREEMENT shall be effective upon acceptance by all parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement has been executed by the principal official of the 
governing board of each party hereto, pursuant to authority of each respective board. 
 
Attest: 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 
 

_______________________________________________  by  _______________________________________________ 
   Clerk to the Board    Board of Commissioners, Chair 
 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 
 

________________________________________________  by  ________________________________________________ 
   Clerk to the Board    Board of Commissioners, Chair 
 
 

DARE COUNTY 
 
 

________________________________________________  by  ________________________________________________ 
   Clerk to the board    Board of Commissioners, Chair 
 
 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY 
 
 

_______________________________________________  by  ________________________________________________ 
   Clerk to the board    Board of Commissioners, Chair 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

A
R

L
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
20

23
  (

E
as

t 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 R
eg

io
n

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   SMWA Resolution Authorizing Registration & Authority to 

Vote 

 

Attachments: Resolution Authorizing Registration and Authority to 

Vote (SMWA 

Membership) (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

Representatives of South Mills Water Association members that are non-person entities or 

organizations must present a notarized resolution executed by or on behalf of the entity 

authorizing the representative to vote the entity's interest.  Camden County is such a member.  

The SMWA will hold a special called meeting of the members on May 3, 2023 to vote on 

whether the SMWA Board may proceed with selling the Association's assets to a viable purchaser 

that is able to continue water service at good value to the members and the customers.   

Recommendation: 

Appoint County Manager Erin Burke to represent the County's membership as its voting 

delegate at the meeting of the members of SMWA on May 3, 2023.   

7.C

Packet Pg. 22



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REGISTRATION AND AUTHORITY TO VOTE  

SOUTH MILLS WATER ASSOCIATION, INC. (SMWA) MEMBERSHIP 

 

Entity/Corporate Name: County of Camden     

 

Secretary of State I.D. Number:       

 

Address:  127 Keeter Barn Rd; 175 McPherson Rd; 501 McBride St.; 1564 N. 343;    

 

             734 N. 343; 1900 Eco Park Blvd.         

 

Account Number:    6592; 4125; 3434; 3539; 3518; 4686; 1115  Phone: 252-338-6363   

 

     (designated person’s name) has been appointed to represent the member entity 

listed above as its voting delegate at meeting(s) of the members of SMWA. 

 

The member entity exists as a (check one): 

 

  Corporation (including non-profit corporations) or LLC 

 

  Partnership 

 

  Church  

 

      Other Legal Entity – Describe type of entity:  Local Government   

 

This resolution will remain in effect (check only one):  

 

  Until revoked by delivery of a subsequent resolution prior to the occurrence of any registration under this 

resolution.  (Revoked resolutions will be null and void during any and all subsequent meetings.) 

 

  Solely for the purpose of voting at the member meeting held on     . 

 

 

               

Signature of authorizing official   Name, title of authorizing official  Date 

 

State of North Carolina 

County of       

I,      , (Notary’s Name) a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby 

certify that      (Name of Authorizing Official) personally came before me this day and 

acknowledged under oath duly sworn or affirmed that she/he is the      (title) of  

      (Name of Membership Entity), a      

(Type of Organization), and being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing on behalf of the Member Entity 

listed above. 

 

Witness my hand and official seal, this the    day of   , 20  . 

 

 

(Official Seal)           

      Notary Signature 

 

 

My Commissioner Expires    ,  . 

 

ND: 4866-4994-6432, v.1 

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 V
o

te
 (

S
M

W
A

 M
em

b
er

sh
ip

) 
 (

S
M

W
A

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

zi
n

g
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 &



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proclamation in Recognition of Provider Appreciation Day 

 

Attachments: Proclamation - Provider Appreciation Day

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Child Care Aware of America will be celebrating Provider Appreciation Day on May 12, 2023.  

This annual celebration is an important opportunity to recognize the childcare providers in our 

community and the critical role they play for so many working families.  The Board will 

consider the attached Proclamation recognizing May 12, 2023 as Provider Appreciation Day in 

Camden County. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

7.D

Packet Pg. 24



 

Proclamation of the Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Provider Appreciation Day – May 12, 2023 

WHEREAS, Child Care Aware® of America and other organizations nationwide are recognizing 

Child Care Providers on this day; and    

WHEREAS, child care provides a safe, nurturing place for the enrichment and development of 

millions of children nationwide and is a vital force in our economy; and  

WHEREAS, the pandemic illuminated how indispensable child care providers are for the well-

being and economic security of Camden County’s young children, families, and communities.   

WHEREAS, child care programs, which are mostly small businesses, run and staffed 

predominantly by women, are still recovering from health and financial hardships stemming from 

the pandemic while they have continued to meet the needs of families; and  

WHEREAS, our future depends on the quality of the early childhood experiences provided to 

young children today and support for high-quality child care represents a worthy commitment to 

our children’s future.    

NOW, THEREFORE, the Camden County Board of Commissioners hereby proclaims May 12, 

2023 as Provider Appreciation Day in Camden County and urge all citizens to recognize Child 

Care Providers for their important work.    

 

Adopted this 1st day of May, 2023. 

       

ATTEST: 

 

            

Tiffney White, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

   
 

7.D.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 P

ro
vi

d
er

 A
p

p
re

ci
at

io
n

 D
ay

  (
P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 in
 R

ec
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
P

ro
vi

d
er

 A
p

p
re

ci
at

io
n

 D
ay

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proclamation in Recognition of Clerks to the Boards of 

County Commissioners Week - 

 

Attachments: Proclamation - County Clerk Week (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the North Carolina Association of County Clerks that the Board adopt the 

Proclamation recognizing April 30-May 6, 2023 as Clerks to the Boards of County 

Commissioners' Week.   

7.E

Packet Pg. 26



 
 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 

CLERKS TO THE BOARDS OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' WEEK 

April 30 through May 6, 2023 

 

WHEREAS: It is imperative to the democratic process that a well-informed citizenry participates 

in the operation of their local government; and 

 

WHEREAS: The office of the Clerk to the Board provides the communication link between the 

citizens, the local governing body and administrative departments, and local government partners; 

and 

 

WHEREAS: The position of clerk is one of the oldest in local government, dating at least to 

biblical times, and whose term has long been associated with the written word; so, it is that modern-

day clerks are official recordkeepers for their counties; and 

 

WHEREAS: North Carolina law requires every board of county commissioners to appoint a clerk 

and the clerk continues in that position “at the pleasure of the board”; and 

 

WHEREAS: The clerk’s most significant statutory duties concern the preparation, filing and 

safeguarding of local government records, but the statutory duties constitute only a portion of what 

the clerk actually does; and  

 

WHEREAS: The clerk plays a vital role in county government and provides the written record 

needed to ensure that the board is accountable to the county’s citizens and to other public and 

private officials; and  

 

WHEREAS: The clerk is sometimes described as “the hub of the wheel” in local government 

because of the central work that the clerk plays in the government’s communication network; and  

 

WHEREAS: As local government becomes larger and more complicated, the clerk’s role as a 

professional, dispassionate provider of information to citizens, government officials, and the media 

becomes more and more important; and  

 

WHEREAS: Clerks have the opportunity to participate in the North Carolina Association of 

County Clerks, a very active professional association of public officials dedicated to improving 

the professional competency of clerks through regular regional and statewide educational 

opportunities; and 

  

WHEREAS: In cooperation with the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of 

Government and International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC), the North Carolina 

Association of County Clerks helps to sponsor a nationally recognized, examination-based 

certification program that culminates in receipt of the designation of Certified Municipal Clerk; 

and 

 

7.E.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
le

rk
 W

ee
k 

 (
P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 in
 R

ec
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
C

le
rk

s 
to

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
s 

o
f 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s 
W

ee
k 

-)



WHEREAS: In addition, the North Carolina Association of County Clerks and the School of 

Government sponsor state certification programs leading to the designation of North Carolina 

Certified County Clerk, as well as opportunities for experienced clerks to obtain the continuing 

professional education needed to remain state-certified or to earn an advanced Master Clerk 

designation; and  

 

WHEREAS: In addition to conducting education programs, the North Carolina Association of 

County Clerks also directly assists clerks on the job with mentoring programs to provide guidance 

to assist clerks in their day-to-day work; and  

 

WHEREAS: Clerks, upon their own initiative, participate in these certification and education 

programs, including annual meetings of the North Carolina Association of County Clerks and the 

International Institute of Municipal Clerks, which not only improve the operation of their office, 

but through their achievements and awards bring favorable publicity to the counties in which they 

serve; and  

 

WHEREAS: Although clerks work for the boards of county commissioners, they truly provide 

public service; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Camden County Board of Commissioners does hereby recognize the 

week of April 30 through May 6, 2023, as Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners' Week, 

and extends our appreciation to our Clerk to the Board, Karen Davis, and to all County Clerks for 

the vital services they perform and their exemplary dedication to the county they represent.  

 

Adopted this 1st day of May, 2023. 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Tiffney White, Chair     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

7.E.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
le

rk
 W

ee
k 

 (
P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 in
 R

ec
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
C

le
rk

s 
to

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
s 

o
f 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s 
W

ee
k 

-)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Parks & Recreation Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Karen Friend and Keith Ward be reappointed to the Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

8.A

Packet Pg. 29



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   CAC Resignation Request 

 

Attachments: TKrauss CAC Resignation (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Community Advisory Committee Volunteer, Tammie Krauss, has requested to be removed from 

the CAC. 

Recommendation: 

Accept resignation.   

8.B

Packet Pg. 30



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

K
ra

u
ss

 C
A

C
 R

es
ig

n
at

io
n

  (
C

A
C

 R
es

ig
n

at
io

n
 R

eq
u

es
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Senior Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Senior Center Advisory Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that the following be reappointed to the Senior Advisory Board for an 

additional term: 

~ Patricia Delano 

~ Edith Jennings 

~ Dorothy Drake 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

8.C

Packet Pg. 32



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Senior Tar Heel Legislature 

 

Attachments: Appointment Request- Patricia Delano (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Senior Tar Heel Legislative Delegate Lynne McLain has resigned.  The alternate, Dianne 

Meiggs, has agreed to become the primary appointee.  Patricia Delano has agreed to become the 

alternate.   

Recommendation: 

Appoint Patricia Delano as the alternate delegate to the Senior Tar Heel Legislature.   

8.D

Packet Pg. 33



 
512 South Church Street 

Hertford, NC 27944 
www.albemarlecommission.org 

P:  252.426.5753 

F:  252.426.8482 

April 21, 2023 
 
Erin Burke, Camden County Manager  
PO Box 190 
Camden, North Carolina 27921 
 
Dear Ms. Burke: 
 
Senate Bill 479 (G.S. 143 B-181.55) enacted on July 24, 1993 authorized 
creation of the Senior Tar Heel Legislature to provide information and 
education to senior citizens on the legislative process and matters being 
considered by the NC General Assembly. This body of individuals is made 
of up a Delegate and Alternate from each of the 100 counties in the State 
of North Carolina.  The STHL meets three (3) times per year in Raleigh to 
discuss and advocate for issues or legislation effecting the senior 
population in North Carolina, additionally, they receive updates from the 
Governor’s office and the Division of Aging and Adult Services (DAAS) on 
special initiatives or programs throughout the state. 
 
Lynne McLain currently serves as Currituck County’s STHL Delegate.  Ms. 
McLain has decided to resign from this committee. Dianne Meiggs has 
agreed to step up as the STHL Delegate for Camden County.  I am 
requesting that Ms. Meiggs be appointed as the STHL Delegate and 
consider appointing Patricia Delano as the Alternate to serve on the Senior 
Tar Heel Legislature, representing Camden County for a two- year term.    
 
Travel expenses are paid by the county, which includes mileage,   
hotel stay for one night and meals, three times per year.  The Area Agency 
on Aging will transport members from our Hertford office as needed.  If 
this poses a problem for the county, please feel free to contact me to 
discuss further.  
 
I hope that you will agree that Ms. Delano would serve as a great advocate 
for older adults residing in your county. Should you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact me via e-mail at jwilson@accog.org  or via 
telephone at 252-426-8244.   
 
Most sincerely, 
 
 
Jasmine S. Wilson, Aging Program & Contract Specialist 
Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging 

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t 
R

eq
u

es
t-

 P
at

ri
ci

a 
D

el
an

o
  (

S
en

io
r 

T
ar

 H
ee

l L
eg

is
la

tu
re

)

mailto:jwilson@accog.org


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_040323 (DOCX) 

bocminutes_040523 (DOCX) 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 35



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

Closed Session – 6:30 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

Minutes 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on April 3, 2023 in the boardroom of 

the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 6:30 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chair Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy Leary.  Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin 

Burke and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.  County Attorney John Morrison was present for the Closed Session.     

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and to consult with the County Attorney. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

The Board came out of Closed Session at 7:00 PM and was reconvened by Chair White for the Regular Meeting.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Tommy Berry gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Success Academy – Director Chudney Hill-Gregory expressed appreciation to the County Manager and the 

Board for use of the Community Room during extensive repairs due to burst pipes at the Success Academy 

facility.  Ms. Chudney-Hill presented a card made by the students.   

 

B. Currituck Chamber of Commerce – Chamber President Josh Bass addressed the Board with the idea of 

starting a conversation in regard to the continued partnership between the Currituck Chamber and Camden 

County, particularly in the area of Economic Development and updated membership tier options.  

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

ITEM 4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Mr. John Morrison presented information on an upcoming 5K event in memory of his daughter, Mary, for the 

purpose of raising funds for the Lineberger Cancer Center in Chapel Hill. This event, referred to as “Run With Mary 

– Make It A Fair Fight” will take place May 14th in Elizabeth City.   

 

 

ITEM 5.  OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. US Motto Action Committee Request – Erin Burke 

 

At the March 6, 2023 meeting, Mr. Rick Lanier with the US Motto Action Committee presented a request for the 

Board to prominently display the National Motto, “In God We Trust” in a location of the Board’s choosing.  Mr. 

Lanier noted that the Committee incurs the full cost of the displays through private donations.  Resolution 2023-04-

01 Supporting the Display of the National Motto, “In God We Trust” was presented to the Board for consideration 

based on Mr. Lanier’s presentation. 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2023-04-01 Supporting the Display of the National Motto in a Prominent 

Location to be Determined. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 6.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

B. Board of Equalization & Review – Lisa Anderson 

 

Pursuant to NC General Statute 105-332(c), the hearing dates for the 2023 Board of Equalization and Review need 

to be set in order to advertise the appropriate time.   

 

Motion to convene the Board of Equalization and Review on May 1, 2023 and adjourn on July 3, 2023. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

C. 2022 Advertisement of Liens on Real Property – Lisa Anderson 

 

Pursuant to NC General Statute 105-369(a), the Tax Administrator must report to the County Commissioners the 

total amount of unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on real property.  Pursuant to NC General 

Statute 105-369(c), the County Commissioners will set the date for advertising the tax liens for real property. 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

Motion to accept the report from the Tax Administrator that, as of March 28, 2023 the total amount of 

unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on real property is $365,308.67 and that this figure shall 

change over time with collections and releases and to set the 2022 Tax Liens on Real Property advertising 

date of April 28, 2023.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

D. Camden Heritage Festival Date – Erin Burke 

 

The Camden County Heritage Festival is planned for September 23, 2023.  This falls on the fourth Saturday in 

September, but does not conflict with any known area events.  Going forward it is recommended the third Saturday 

in September be reserved for the Heritage Festival.  This will allow the public, staff and vendors to plan for future 

events and will hopefully prevent conflicting events from being planned. 

 

Motion to set the date of the Camden Heritage Festival for the 3rd Saturday of September annually, beginning 

in 2024. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak  

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

E. Sheriff’s Office Salary Study – Erin Burke 

 

At a recent Albemarle Regional Jail Board meeting a salary increase of 7% was authorized for Jail employees.  

Other area law enforcement agencies have also authorized pay increases for personnel.  These salary changes 

triggered a review of salaries within the Camden County Sheriff’s Office.  The internal study examined salaries of 

28 adjacent agencies.  The results of the study indicate that Camden County Sheriff’s Office employees rank among 

lowest paid in the region.  The Board should consider salary adjustments to address current retention and future 

recruitment concerns.   

 

Vice Chair Munro stated that the Jail Board on which he serves as Chair, increased the salary there 7% and there 

will likely be an additional 7% added in the coming fiscal year.  Mr. Munro stated that he fully supports Sheriff 

Jones and the Deputies for the requested 14% increase.  He added that there are a number of deputies that have 

accumulated many hours of compensatory leave due to the inability to take the necessary time off to use the leave.   

 

Commissioner Krainiak stated that he is in support of what could be done to keep good employees in Camden 

County and to keep the standards high. 

 

County Manager Burke added that the numbers presented in the presentation were as of February 2023 and since 

then a number of agencies have increased salaries and anticipate additional increases in the coming fiscal year.  The 

State Highway Patrol recently announced that the base pay for a cadet’s salary will be $56,000.   

 

Motion to approve the pay increase to the Camden County Sheriff’s Office as presented in the salary study.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Sheriff Jones expressed appreciation to the Board for its support as well as to Lieutenant Brandon Henderson for his 

work in conducting and compiling the results of the study.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 

F. Tax & Planning Offices Relocation – County Manager Erin Burke presented the following:  

 

  
 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 

 
 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

  
 

 

Motion to authorize staff to proceed with the relocation proposals as presented, with expenses not to exceed 

$200,000.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Vice Chair Munro requested that consideration be given to the provision of a service for the collection of tax and 

water payments to make it easier for seniors to make payments without having to get out of their vehicles.  Manager 

Burke explained that the new location has improved accessibility features but that consideration would be given to 

his request.   She also expressed appreciation to the Board for its support in moving forward with this project.   

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

Chair White recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

New Business 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Chair White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

 

ITEM 7.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes 

• February 22, 2023 

• March 6, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

B. Budget Amendments 

 

  
 

 

C. School Budget Amendments 

 

   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

 
 

 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

E. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

G. 2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application – On file in the Finance Office.  Herein incorporated by reference. 

 

H. Auditor Engagement Letters and Contracts – On file in the Finance Office.  Herein incorporated by 

reference. 

 

I. Set Public Hearing – Commerce Park Property Sale 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public hearing at 7:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 

practical, on May 1, 2023, in the Boardroom of the Camden Public Library to receive public input on the 

conveyance of a fee simple interest in real property from the County of Camden (The County) to D. T. Read Steel 

Co., Inc. (The Company) consisting of six point seven two (6.72) acres more or less situate within the Camden 

Commerce Park, Camden, North Carolina, to exclude any wetlands. The value of the real property to be conveyed is 

thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000) per acre.  The proposed consideration will be thirty-five thousand dollars 

($35,000) per acre.  The Company contemplates moving its corporate headquarters with the creation of 6-8 

administrative full-time jobs and 75-150 seasonal jobs within an average annual payroll of $10 million. Jobs shall be 

maintained for at least ten (10) years.  The Board of Commissioners intends to approve this conveyance.  This 

Notice and the contemplated public hearing is in accord with N.C. General Statute 158-7.1 and N.C. General Statute 

168-20.1. 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

ITEM 8.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

County Manager Erin Burke included the following in her report: 

• Budget Meetings with Department Heads 

• Attended Strategic Planning Update sponsored by the Economic Development Branch of Albemarle 

Commission 

• Grass-cutting season has begun for Buildings & Grounds and discussion of wildflower plantings to reduce 

mowing frequency. 

 

 

ITEM 9.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Vice Chair Ross Munro shared that he had participated via conference call in the recent joint meeting of the Board 

of Commissioners and Board of Education in regard to the construction of the new high school.  He wanted to 

reiterate that while he is in full support of a new high school, the School Board and teaching community, he is not in 

support of “shoe-horning a school into the wrong sized property with no possibility of future growth and it is my 

belief that this board and the Board of Education, for those members who are voting for that, are just creating 

problems that will have to be solved by future boards and we’re not looking to the future and adequately and 

properly spending their tax dollars by forcing a school on too small a property and I can’t support it until we have 

the right size property to build a new school on.”   

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak stated he had brought up the same concerns during the joint meeting and agrees with 

Vice Chair Munro.  Commissioner Krainiak’s primary concerns include the issue that only 38 acres of the property 

is not useable and that parking will be an issue for events.  He added that 158 will eventually be 5 lanes with 

possibly a traffic light; in addition to 3-phase electricity, with plenty of room for expansion 30 years from now.  343 

could potentially have flooding issues with no plans for road improvements, no room for expansion, not enough 

parking, soil concerns and trying to place much too much on one piece of property.  Commissioner Krainiak added 

that engineers have stated that the site on 158 is a better location.  He stated concerns that the voters and general 

public are not aware of the issues with the site on 343 and that the Board will be responsible for the burden that is 

placed on the citizens, particularly the elderly.  It is his opinion that the site is too small and the curve nearby is 

dangerous and that there are other locations that can be considered.   

 

Commissioner Troy Leary stated that 343 and 158 are not the only two sites that could be considered.  He added that 

it could be put out to the public and that there is plenty of land available in Camden.   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 3, 2023 

Vice Chair Munro stated that he heard Commissioner Leary as saying that 343 is not an appropriate site. 

 

Commissioner Leary responded by saying, “If it’s not big enough, it’s not big enough.”   

 

Chair Tiffney White stated that the Board was polled at the joint meeting and the majority voted to proceed with 

343.   

 

Vice Chair Munro stated that he does not want to waste taxpayers’ money building a high school in a location that 

another board, before the high school is even paid for, will have to fix the problems. 

 

Chair White stated that she does not think we’re putting a high school where it should not be.  She stated that, “We 

own the land, which the public needs to know.  We already own the land.  We will have to spend more money buying 

more land and we don’t need to do it.  We already went down this road long enough so we need to move forward.  

The Board has been polled.  We’re going to move forward with the school on 343.”   

 

Commissioner Krainiak requested that the Board be polled again. 

 

Chair White polled the Board as to those in favor of building the school on 343.    

 

Chair White and Commissioner Aydlett voted aye.  Vice Chair Munro and Commissioners Krainiak and Leary voted 

nay.   

 

Commissioner Krainiak stated that the Board should look for more property to see what’s available to the taxpayers; 

those who are paying the bill.   

 

 

ITEM 10.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Fire Prevention Report 

 

ITEM 11.  OTHER MATTERS          

None. 

 

 

ITEM 12.  ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair White adjourned the meeting at 7:44 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Tiffney White, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 5, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Budget Work Session 

April 5, 2023; 1:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on April 5, 2023 at 1:00 PM in the 

Community Room of the Camden County Public Library. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 1:00 PM.  Additional Board members present: Vice 

Chair Ross Munro, Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy Leary.  Staff Present: County Manager 

Erin Burke, Finance Officer Stephanie Jackson and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis. 

 

The following items were presented to the Board for discussion/direction:   

 

Capital Improvement Projects Updates 

 

• Funded in 2022-2023 

▪ Construction of Raw Water Well 

▪ Waste Water Expansion 

▪ Administration Complex Phase II 

▪ Broadband 

▪ High School 

• Recommended / Unfunded 2022-2023 

▪ US 158 Sidewalk Extension 

▪ South Mills WWTP (High Rate Filtration Pond) 

▪ Treasure Point Building 

• Identified / Unfunded 2022-2023 

▪ South Mills Boat Ramp & Park 

▪ South Mills Waste Water Expansion & Disposal 

• Recommended / Funded in 2023-2024 

▪ Construction of Raw Water Well 

▪ Waste Water Expansion 

▪ Administration Complex  Phase II, modified 

▪ Broadband 

▪ High School 

▪ Treasure Point Building 

▪ EMS  

• Recommended / Unfunded 2023-2024 

▪ US 158 Sidewalk Extension  

▪ South Mills WWTP (High Rate Filtration Pond) 

• Identified / Unfunded 2023-2024 

▪ South Mills Boat Ramp & Park 

▪ South Mills Waste Water Expansion & Disposal 

 

There was brief discussion on possibly adding the following to the CIP: 

• Public Beach Access (Sailboat Launch Area) – Identified / Unfunded 

• East Coast Greenway Connector – Identified / Unfunded 

• Boating Amenities Along Canal – Identified / Unfunded 

 

IT Software & Hardware Updates 

• Microsoft O365 – Email Migration 

• MFA Implementation 

• Microsoft O365 Cloud Backup 

• Security Awareness Training 

• Password Management 

• Adobe Licensing VIP 

 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 5, 2023 

Insurance / Benefits – Personnel 

• Health Insurance Increase – Update not yet available 

• Property & Liability Increase – Update not yet available 

• Worker’s Comp – Update not yet available 

• Employee Retirement – (<1% / Law Enforcement Retirement >1.2%) 

• COLA – Consensus to look at 4% and 5% 

• Health Care Spending Card 

• Wellness Benefit  

 

Department Budget Highlights – After discussion the following Staffing Requests were ranked by consensus in the 

following order based on priority of the Board: 

1. EMS 

2. Sheriff’s Office (seven positions) 

3. Elections / Museum Assistant 

4. Distribution & Collection Tech 

5. Maintenance Worker 

6. Custodian (PT) 

7. Grounds Keeping (seasonal) 

8. DSS IMC (as needed) 

 

Vehicle Requests 

• DSS – Van 

• Waste Water – Truck 

• Distribution – Two trucks 

• Water – Truck 

• Maintenance – Truck / Two custodial vans 

• Fleet Vehicle 

• Sheriff’s Office – Seven vehicles 

 

Department Budget Highlights 

• General 

▪ IT Hardware Replacement Schedule 

▪ Gas, Oil & Chemical Cost Increases 

▪ Solid Waste Disposal & Costs 

▪ Restructuring of Some Department Budgets 

▪ Fee Increases 

▪ Heritage Festival 

• Economic Development 

▪ Continued Funding Structure Discussion 

• Governing Body 

▪ Travel & Training Budget 

▪ Strategic Planning 

• Parks & Recreation 

▪ New Mower 

▪ Community Park Improvements, including Stormwater 

▪ Dismal Swamp Trail Paving 

• Public Health 

▪ Involuntary Committal Transport Costs 

• Public Works 

▪ Building Maintenance Costs 

• Solid Waste 

▪ Hauling Fees (SW & Recycling) 

• RO Plant 

▪ Equipment Maintenance 

• Distribution 

▪ Line Maintenance 

▪ Capital Outlay Inventory 

• Sewer 

▪ New Mower 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 5, 2023 

• Tax 

▪ Revaluation Frequency 

• Sheriff’s Office 

▪ On-Call Attorney Services 

▪ Training 

▪ New Position Equipment Costs 

 

Revenues  

2023-2024 Projections – Update not yet available 

• Unassigned Fund Balance - $7,762,728 

• Capital Reserve Balance via 2022 Audit - $6,046,186 

 

School Board 

• Operating – 3-cent tax  $   656,977 

• Debt Service – 10-cent tax  $2,185,891 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

• May 1, 2023; 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting / Set Public Hearing 

• May 3, 2023; 1:00 PM – Budget Work Session 

• May 17, 2023; 4:00 PM – Possible Budget Work Session 

• June 5, 2023; 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting / Public Hearing / Budget Adoption 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair White adjourned the work session at 4:18 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Tiffney White, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.B 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: 22-23 BA 035 Renovation Monies (DOC) 

22-23 BA 036 Marketing - Vehicle Needs transfer

 (DOC) 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 62



                                                       2022-23-BA035 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Expenses  

106810-597500  CRF Appropriation          $262,000 

105000-574121  Sheriff Maintenance Bldg Reno $27,500 

105000-574122  Admin/Planning Bldg Reno           $112,500 

105000-574123  Tax/Water Bldg Reno   $60,000 

716600-575000  Administration Phase 1  $62,000 

 

This Budget Amendment is to appropriate debt service funds for the upcoming renovations 

and to pay the debt service for the Administration Phase 1 loan through Truist.   

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st  day of May, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
35

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
 M

o
n

ie
s 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2022-23-BA036 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Expenses  

104940-557004  Marketing       $40,000 

105000-574000  Capital Outlay    $40,000 

 

This Budget Amendment is to appropriate marketing funds to assist in replacing the aging 

vehicles and the fleet this fiscal year. 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st  day of May, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
36

 M
ar

ke
ti

n
g

 -
 V

eh
ic

le
 N

ee
d

s 
tr

an
sf

er
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.C 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 65



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.D 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: REFUNDS OVER $100.00 APRIL, 2023 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  Refunds Over $100.00 April, 2023 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.D

Packet Pg. 67



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 A
P

R
IL

, 2
02

3 
 (

R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.E 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Vehicle refunds over $100.00 March, 2023 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 March, 2023 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.E

Packet Pg. 69



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 r

ef
u

n
d

s 
o

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

M
ar

ch
, 2

02
3 

 (
V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.F 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   Estimated Tax Values-2023 

 

Attachments: 2023 Estimated Tax Values (PDF) 

 

9.F

Packet Pg. 71



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

ax
 V

al
u

es
  (

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

ax
 V

al
u

es
-2

02
3)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.G 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Amended Grant Project Ordinance 

 

Attachments: Project Ordinance - Amended 050123 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: This American Rescue Project Ordinance is being amended to be used for salaries for 

the General Fund and then salaries reallocated to well and water extension. The School of 

Government recommends using revenue replacement as it does not require additional policies 

and federal guidelines to be put in place.  

 

Recommendation:   To approve the ordinance as amended.  

9.G

Packet Pg. 73



Grant Project Ordinance for the County of Camden American Rescue Act of 2021: 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (AMENDED) 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Camden, North Carolina that, pursuant to Section 

13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following grant project ordinance is hereby 

adopted:  

Section 1: This ordinance is to establish a budget for a project to be funded by the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 

Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (CSLFRF). The County of Camden has received the 

allocation of $2,110,787 first tranche in the amount of $1,055,393.50 of CSLFRF funds. The total allocation is 

$2,110,787, with the remainder to be distributed to the county within 12 months. These funds may be used for the 

following categories of expenditures, to the extent authorized by state law.  

1. Invest in water and sewer infrastructure, making necessary investments to improve access to clean drinking 

water, support vital wastewater and stormwater infrastructure. To pay salaries for employees within the 

general fund to use the revenue replacement category.   

Section 2: The following amounts are appropriated for the project and authorized for expenditure:   

Section 3: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project:  

 CSLFRF Funds:    $2,110,787 
 General Fund Transfer:   $0 
 Total:     $2,110,787 
 
Section 4: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed accounting records to 
satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant agreements.  
 
Section 5: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to report the financial status of the project to the governing 
board on a quarterly basis.  
 
Section 6: Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer, the Finance Officer and 
to the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners.  
 
Section 7: This grant project ordinance expires on December 31, 2026, or when all the CSLFRF funds have been 
obligated and expended by the county, whichever occurs first.  
 
Adopted this, the 1st of May 2023. 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Tiffney White, Chairperson   Karen M. Davis 
Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board of Commissioners  

Project Description  Cost Object  Appropriation of CSLFRF 
Funds 

Appropriation of Other 
Monies (Specify revenue 

source) 

Extension of Wastewater Line Contract  $500,000 $0 

Water Infrastructure Expansion Contract  $1,400,000 $0 

Unassigned  $210,787 $0 

Salaries Revenue Replacement $2,110,787 $0 

Total  $2,110,787 $0 

9.G.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 -
 A

m
en

d
ed

 0
50

12
3 

 (
A

m
en

d
ed

 G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 O
rd

in
an

ce
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.H 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - FY 2023-2024 Budget 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for June 5, 2023 on the FY 2023-2024 Budget. 

9.H

Packet Pg. 75



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.I 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - 2023-2027 Capital Improvement 

Program 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for June 5, 2023 on the 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program. 

9.I

Packet Pg. 76



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.A 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

12.A

Packet Pg. 77



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.B 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report, 3/2023 

 

Attachments: 23-03 (DOCX) 

 

12.B

Packet Pg. 80



Camden County Public Library 

March 2023 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 2,058 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 4,170 

Cloud Library Check Out (ebooks & audiobooks) 102 (8% decrease from 3/23) 

Computer/ Wireless Use 291/911 

Questions Answered 299 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 16/444 

Teen Program/Attendance 1/4 

Adult Programs/Attendance 4/37 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 53/101 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 3/14 

Days/Hours Open 30/245 

# Items in Collection 20,814 

Library Card Holders 2,466 

 

Comparison by Year 

2021-2023 

  
           

 

 

788

1350

2,058

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2021 MAR 2022 MAR 2023 MAR

Attendance

2,520

3,194

4,170

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

2021 MAR 2022 MAR 2023 MAR

Circulation

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
03

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.C 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Adult Care Community Advisory Committee Annual Report 

 

Attachments: 4-21-23 letter commissioners Camden CAC Annual 

report (DOC) 

FFY 2021-2022 Camden County  CAC Annual Report

 (DOCX) 

 

12.C

Packet Pg. 82



 
512 South Church Street 

Hertford, NC 27944 
www.albemarlecommission.org 

P:  252.426.5753 

F:  252.426.8482 

4-21-2023 
 
Dear Commissioners, 
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to provide you with a copy of 
the  Camden County Community Advisory  Committee report for 
FFY 2021-2022 
If you have any questions or would like to discuss the efforts to 
increase the participation on this committee pleas contact me. 
 

Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging 
Attn: Melissa Hines 
512 S Church Street 
Hertford, NC  27944 

 
I can also be contacted directly at (252) 404-7086 or 
mhines@accog.org. Thank you in advance for your review and 
interest in this report.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Melissa Hines RN, CCM 
Regional Long- Term Care Ombudsman 
512 S. Church St. 
Hertford NC, 27944 
 

 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

-2
1-

23
 le

tt
er

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

C
am

d
en

 C
A

C
 A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)

mailto:mhines@accog.org


ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR 

ADULT CARE AND NURSING HOME COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

REGION R 

 

COUNTY: Camden   REPORTING YEAR:  FFY 2021-2022 

COMMITTEE: ACH 

 

CHAIRPERSON: Tammie Krauss (resigned) 

 

Other Members: None 

 

1. Were all homes in the county served by the committee? If not, why? 

There were CAC monitoring visits completed during FFY 2021-2022 due to COVID lock 

down. The CAC was allowed to re-enter the facilities as of July 2022 after re-training 

occurred. Re- training consisted of what to expect post COVID and how-to DON/ DOFF 

personal protective equipment (masks, gloves and gowns) and how to sanitize before, 

during and after the encounters.  

 

 

2. Describe education efforts by the committee. 

There was no community education involvement by CAC during the FFI 2021-2022 due 

to COVID restrictions. Education was provided to the CAC by the RLTCO via zoom and 

face to face instruction 

 

3. Describe community involvement by committee. 

There was no community involvement by the CAC due to COVID lock down. 

 

 

4. Describe problems encountered by committee. 

During COVID lock down the CAC committee was not able to enter the facilities and 

was not able to advocate for the residents as the members would have liked. During this 

time period the CAC committee members resigned leaving 1 member. This is felt to be a 

result of volunteers finding other avenues to volunteer their time as well as the new ACL 

requirements for initial and on-going education. 

 

 

5. Was the committee involved in grievance resolution during the year? 

       No 

 

 

6. Summarize the strengths and weaknesses of the facilities in the county. 

There is one Adult Care Home in Camden County. The facility ownership, staffing and 

leadership have been stable, allowing for consistency in the daily routines of residents 

and staff. While the facility is licensed for 24 beds the facility only takes 11 residents for 

12.C.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

F
Y

 2
02

1-
20

22
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

  C
A

C
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)



admission, advising that this allows them to provide the best care for the residents that 

they serve. 

 

There were problems reported during COVID of supply change issues causing problems 

with getting certain supplies. That concern has resolved. 

 

The cost of living increase for daily needed items has during and since COVID, coupled 

with the fact that they are a small facility may have put undue stress on the facility staff. 

The extent of how this affected the facility is not readily known. They continue to 

provide the utmost care for the residents that they serve. 

 

 

7. Other comments. 

FFY 2022-2023 The goal of the CAC is to recruit membership so that the committee can 

be effective in advocating for the resident in the long-term care facilities of Camden 

County.  

 

Camden County has one Adult Care Home with the potential of housing 24 long- term 

care residents. CAC requirement is 5 members. 

 

Quarterly facility monitoring visits began the first quarter and are continuing.  CAC 

education is completed routinely during quarterly meeting with the goal of 18 hours of 

continuing education to be completed annually per the Association of Community Living 

(ACL) requirements. 

 

The Regional Long- Term Care Ombudsman will continue to make routine visits to this 

facility to ensure the long – term care residents of Camden County have access to 

advocacy services. 

 

 

 

THE REGIONAL OMBUDSMAN WILL DISTRIBUTE THIS REPORT TO COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS, THE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES, AND 

THE DIVISION OF AGING. 

 

Prepared by: Melissa Hines RN, CCM, RTLCO 

 

Date Prepared: 3-31-23 

12.C.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

F
Y

 2
02

1-
20

22
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

  C
A

C
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.D 

Meeting Date:   May 01, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Fire Prevention Report 

 

Attachments: Fire Inspection Report (PDF) 

 

12.D

Packet Pg. 86



March 2023 Monthly Report 
Fire Prevention 
Camden County 

 
 

Inspections 
 
Waterfall Blossom Café 
891 Sandy Hook Road 
 
Completed 
 
Waterfall Blossom Café – no violations noted 
891 Sandy Hook Road – courtesy walk thru as there have been no plans submitted to 
us for review for this project 
Shiloh Shopping Center – courtesy walk thru as Mr. Kraniak was inquiring what would 
need to be done for him to reopen the store portion of the business.  Referred him to the 
Building Inspections Office as well. 
 
Investigations 
 
Gallberry Road – Excavator Fire 
 
 
Plans Review 
 
No Permits Issued 
No Plans Received to our Office 
 
Special Projects/Training 
 
Camden County School Inspections Scheduled for the month of April with School 
Maintenance Staff. 
Fire and Life Safety Educator I Certification obtained by Smith 
 
 
 
 
 

12.D.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
F

ir
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Rev. William Sawyer

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Presentations
	A. Dismal Swamp Welcome Center - Sarah Hill
	Printout: Dismal Swamp Welcome Center - Sarah Hill


	4. Public Comments
	5. Public Hearings
	A. Public Hearing - D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc.
	Printout: Public Hearing - D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc.


	6. Old Business
	A. Discussion of New High School
	Printout: Discussion of New High School


	7. New Business
	A. Tax Report
	Printout: Tax Report
	a. March20230425100212358

	B. East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement
	Printout: East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement
	a. EARL Agreement 2023

	C. SMWA Resolution Authorizing Registration & Authority to Vote
	Printout: SMWA Resolution Authorizing Registration & Authority to Vote
	a. Resolution Authorizing Registration and Authority to Vote (SMWA Membership)

	D. Proclamation in Recognition of Provider Appreciation Day
	Printout: Proclamation in Recognition of Provider Appreciation Day
	a. Proclamation - Provider Appreciation Day

	E. Proclamation in Recognition of Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week -
	Printout: Proclamation in Recognition of Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week -
	a. Proclamation - County Clerk Week


	8. Board Appointments
	A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	Printout: Parks & Recreation Advisory Board

	B. CAC Resignation Request
	Printout: CAC Resignation Request
	a. TKrauss CAC Resignation

	C. Senior Center Advisory Board
	Printout: Senior Center Advisory Board

	D. Senior Tar Heel Legislature
	Printout: Senior Tar Heel Legislature
	a. Appointment Request- Patricia Delano


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	9. Consent Agenda
	A. BOC Meeting Minutes
	Printout: BOC Meeting Minutes
	a. bocminutes_040323
	b. bocminutes_040523

	B. Budget Amendments
	Printout: Budget Amendments
	a. 22-23 BA 035 Renovation Monies
	b. 22-23 BA 036 Marketing - Vehicle Needs transfer

	C. Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	D. Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Refunds Over $100.00
	a. REFUNDS OVER $100.00 APRIL, 2023

	E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Vehicle refunds over $100.00 March, 2023

	F. Estimated Tax Values-2023
	Printout: Estimated Tax Values-2023
	a. 2023 Estimated Tax Values

	G. Amended Grant Project Ordinance
	Printout: Amended Grant Project Ordinance
	a. Project Ordinance - Amended 050123

	H. Set Public Hearing - FY 2023-2024 Budget
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - FY 2023-2024 Budget

	I. Set Public Hearing - 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program


	10. County Manager's Report
	11. Commissioners' Reports
	12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. Library Report
	Printout: Library Report
	a. 23-03

	C. Adult Care Community Advisory Committee Annual Report
	Printout: Adult Care Community Advisory Committee Annual Report
	a. 4-21-23 letter commissioners Camden CAC Annual report
	b. FFY 2021-2022 Camden County  CAC Annual Report

	D. Fire Prevention Report
	Printout: Fire Prevention Report
	a. Fire Inspection Report


	13. Other Matters
	14. Adjourn

	Appendix
	3.A · Dismal Swamp Welcome Center - Sarah Hill
	5.A · Public Hearing - D.T. Read Steel Company, Inc.
	6.A · Discussion of New High School
	7.A · Tax Report
	7.A.a · March20230425100212358

	7.B · East Albemarle Regional Library Agreement
	7.B.a · EARL Agreement 2023

	7.C · SMWA Resolution Authorizing Registration & Authority to Vote
	7.C.a · Resolution Authorizing Registration and Authority to Vote (SMWA Membership)

	7.D · Proclamation in Recognition of Provider Appreciation Day
	7.D.a · Proclamation - Provider Appreciation Day

	7.E · Proclamation in Recognition of Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week -
	7.E.a · Proclamation - County Clerk Week

	8.A · Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	8.B · CAC Resignation Request
	8.B.a · TKrauss CAC Resignation

	8.C · Senior Center Advisory Board
	8.D · Senior Tar Heel Legislature
	8.D.a · Appointment Request- Patricia Delano

	9.A · BOC Meeting Minutes
	9.A.a · bocminutes_040323
	9.A.b · bocminutes_040523

	9.B · Budget Amendments
	9.B.a · 22-23 BA 035 Renovation Monies
	9.B.b · 22-23 BA 036 Marketing - Vehicle Needs transfer

	9.C · Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	9.C.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	9.D · Refunds Over $100.00
	9.D.a · REFUNDS OVER $100.00 APRIL, 2023

	9.E · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	9.E.a · Vehicle refunds over $100.00 March, 2023

	9.F · Estimated Tax Values-2023
	9.F.a · 2023 Estimated Tax Values

	9.G · Amended Grant Project Ordinance
	9.G.a · Project Ordinance - Amended 050123

	9.H · Set Public Hearing - FY 2023-2024 Budget
	9.I · Set Public Hearing - 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program
	12.A · Register of Deeds Report
	12.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	12.B · Library Report
	12.B.a · 23-03

	12.C · Adult Care Community Advisory Committee Annual Report
	12.C.a · 4-21-23 letter commissioners Camden CAC Annual report
	12.C.b · FFY 2021-2022 Camden County  CAC Annual Report

	12.D · Fire Prevention Report
	12.D.a · Fire Inspection Report



